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ATTACHMENT ‘A’ 

 

ADDENDUM NO. 003 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 24309 

OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE SERVICES FOR THE OUTBOUND 

PASSENGER IN-LINE BAGGAGE HANDLING SYSTEM 

T. F. GREEN AIRPORT 
 
 
1. Are there any manual encoding stations in the north or south bag room?  No. 
 
2. What is the effective date of the new contract?  July 1, 2012. 
 
3. Are the airlines utilizing the baggage handling system prevented from pursuing claims 

for consequential damages against the Airport, and if so, by what means?  Have the 
airlines waived claims for consequential damages in a lease or other agreement, or how 
might they otherwise be barred from bringing such claims?  Exhibit ‘A’ is the applicable 
limitation of liability section (and pertinent definition page) from the current airline 
operating agreement.  RIAC makes no representation as to the applicability of this 
limitation to independent contractors performing work at RIAC facilities.  Bidders are 
advised to consult with their own legal counsel. 

 
4. RFP pg 3 states “The Operator will be required to maintain the existing Technical 

Support Agreement with Jervis B. Webb”.  What is this TSA?  Is there a cost associated 
with this TSA?  Can we obtain a copy of this TSA?  The existing contract will continue 
with the new Operator.  Cost is currently approximately $15,600 per year.  Exhibit B 
attached. 

 
5. Are there any license or permit requirements that a proposer needs to be aware of with 

any public agency?  Please refer to meeting notes. 
 
6. Please confirm that TSA maintains the explosive detection devices and is excluded from 

this contract.  Yes. 
 
7. Is a copy of the existing Technical Support Agreement with Jervis B. Webb available?  

Exhibit ‘B’ attached. 
 
8. Will a crew be able to access and perform Preventive and heavy maintenance from 2100 

hours to 0400 hours?  Yes. 
 
9. Will damaged or lost bins be considered spare parts or is replacement cost the 

responsibility of the operator?  Yes.  Spare parts are reimbursed under the contract. 
 
10. Are tubs used on the inbound system part of the total tub count or are they maintained 

separately?  No, not part of the tub count. 
 
11. Will the system be under manufacturer’s warranty when this contract is to begin and for 

how long?  No. 
 
12. Who is responsible for conducting warranty work?  N/A. 
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13. Will a warranty issue impact the Performance % if not resolved in a timely manner? N/A. 
 
14. If the system is currently being maintained by an operator will posting of job openings 

and interviews be allowed or are those employees off limits?  RIAC has no objections. 
 
15. What terms and conditions are acceptable regarding payment?  Refer to contract 

agreement. 
 
16. Page 4 refers to parking being provided in designated spaces and this will be 

coordinated through RIAC's parking operator. What is the cost if any per space?  No 
cost. 

 
17. What are the current staffing levels and pay grades?  Currently staffed by 15 full-time 

employees ranging $15-25 per hour, not including the Manager. 
 
18. Are there prevailing or other wage requirements for Technicians?  Refer to RI Dept. of 

Labor and Training. 
 
19. Are records available for labor hours and costs for the previous maintenance contract? 

The approximate value of the current contract is $1.5 million. 
 
20.  Is a copy of the current contract available for review?  Exhibit ‘C’ attached. 
 
21. Request for Proposals Requirements 

This section indicates, “Proposers are required to submit their most recent audited 
financial statements in a separate sealed envelope along with the proposal.”  
 
Would the Airport Corporation accept the Audited Financial of our parent company in lieu 
of individual reviewed/audited financials?  Yes; however, RIAC reserves the right to 
require additional information and/or to reflect this relationship in the Agreement. 
 

22. Performance Guarantee - .a 
This section indicates, “On the effective date of the Agreement, Operator shall provide 
RIAC with a document(s) providing for financial guarantees under this Agreement.  Such 
financial guarantee document(s) shall be in the amount of two Hundred and Fifty 
Thousand and 00/100 dollars ($250,000.00).” 
Please confirm the Airport Corporation will accept a Payment and Performance Bond on 
Standard AIA forms in the amount of $250,000.00.  Yes. 
 

23. Article 9.1 – Operator’s Insurance/General Liability 
 General Liability section requests $1,000,000 fire damage coverage.  We respectfully 
request this requirement be reduced as our general liability policy includes a limit of 
$100,000 for fire damage.  No.  However, the proposer may list this as a requested 
exception to the standard Agreement and RIAC will evaluate the requested change 
during its review process. 
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24. Article 9.1 – Operator’s Insurance/General Liability 

General Liability section requests per project aggregate.  We respectfully request this 
requirement be deleted.  If required, we can add per project endorsement for an 
additional cost. In lieu of pet project aggregate we can provide up to a $10,000,000 
general aggregate limit (primary) and an additional $20,000,000 excess limit at no 
additional cost.  No.  However, the proposer may list this as a requested exception to the 
standard Agreement and RIAC will evaluate the requested change during its review 
process. 

25. Article 9.1 – Operator’s Insurance/Excess/Umbrella Liability 

Excess/Umbrella Liability section requests a $25,000,000 limit.  We can issue a 
certificate from our Insurance Carrier in the United States with $20,000,000 coverage 
and a certificate from our Insurance Carrier in Germany with $5,000,000 coverage.  
Please confirm the two certificates together equaling $25,000,000 will be acceptable. 
This is acceptable if the $5,000,000 from German carrier is in “excess” over the limit of 
$20,000,000 evidenced by the U.S. Based carrier; and if the $5,000,000 from carrier in 
Germany responds to a claim brought in U.S.  

26.  Article 9.4 – General Indemnification 

This section indicates, “Operator will defend, indemnify, and hold RIAC and the State of 
Rhode Island harmless from and against any and all loss, costs, claims, demands, 
actions, causes of action, awards, penalties, damages or liabilities, of every kind and 
character, whether in law or in equity, including attorneys’ fees and court costs, whether 
by reason of death, injury, or damage to any person or persons or damage or destruction 
of property or loss of use thereof, or any other reason, to the extent arising out of or 
otherwise cause by, directly or indirectly: (I) any failure by operator to perform…” 

We respectfully request ‘loss of use’ be deleted from this section and emended to read, 
“Operator will defend, indemnify, and hold RIAC and the State of Rhode Island harmless 
from and against any and all loss, costs, claims, demands, actions, causes of action, 
awards, penalties, damages or liabilities, of every kind and character, whether in law or 
in equity, including attorneys’ fees and court costs, whether by reason of death, injury, or 
damage to any person or persons or damage or destruction of property, or any other 
reason, to the extent arising out of or otherwise cause by, directly or indirectly: (I) any 
failure by operator to perform…”  No. 

27.  Regarding Section 1.1.6 of the Professional Services Agreement: 
 

1.1.6 Goods: means the spare parts, consumables and tools required to be 
provided by Operator under this Agreement. Spare parts and consumables maintained 
by the Operator in the Operator Inventory shall not be deemed Goods until actually 
installed, used or consumed in the System. 

 
Could you please clarify if the Operator is allowed to charge a markup on "Operator 
Inventory"?  No. 
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28. Regarding Section 1.1.10(v) of the Professional Services Agreement & the Pre-Proposal 
Meeting Minutes: 

 
PSA: 
  
1.1.10 Operating Expenses: mean the following necessary and direct expenses of 
operating and managing the System if duly reflected on an approved annual budget: 

 
(v) computerized maintenance management system (CMMS); 

 
Pre-Proposal Meeting: 

 
The current CMMS is Maximo 6.1. The Operator will be expected to assume the current, 
or be responsible for, all costs to migrate the current CMMS for all aspects of its 
operation including.  
 
Could you please clarify if the Operator is allowed to bill RIAC any start-up or migration 
costs related to the CMMS?  Any deviation from CMMS Maximo 6.1 is Operator cost. 

 
29. Regarding Section 1.1.14 of the Professional Services Agreement: 
 

1.1.14 Operator Inventory: “RIAC Inventory” means, as of the Effective Date, 
the spare parts, materials, consumables and tools provided by Jervis B. Webb to RIAC 
and kept or maintained on-site to be installed, used and/or consumed in the System as 
described in Exhibit F. “Operator Inventory” means the spare parts, materials and 
consumables kept or maintained on-site by Operator to be installed, used and/or 
consumed in the System. “Inventory” means the combined RIAC Inventory and Operator 
Inventory. 

 
Could you please clarify whether the operator will be required to replace items 
consumed from the "RIAC Inventory" with "Operator Inventory" in order to maintain 
established inventory levels?  Yes. 
 
Is the long-term goal of RIAC to deplete its inventory entirely so that the "Operator 
Inventory" is the sole inventory? If so, what is the approximate value of the combined 
RIAC and Operator inventory?  Yes.  Refer to Amendment No. 2. 

 
30. Regarding Section 1.1.5(x) of the Professional Services Agreement: 
 

1.1.5 Excluded Operating Expenses: mean the following expenses: 
 

(x) Any operating expense that exceeds a RIAC-approved budget unless a duly 
authorized representative of RIAC has approved or requested such expense in 
writing; 

 
Would RIAC allow the approved budget to be modified to account for any increased 
labor costs as a result of a labor action?  No. 
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31. Regarding Section 4.2 of the Professional Services Agreement and the Pre-Proposal 
Meeting Minutes: 

 
 PSA: 

 
4.2 Reimbursement. RIAC will reimburse Operator on a monthly basis the full 
amount of the Operating Expenses set forth on each Operating Expense 
Schedule and based on the CMMS. 

 
Pre-Proposal Meeting 

 
The CMMS will be the means by which payments to the Operator will be made. 

 
 Could you please explain how the CMMS is to be used in the billing process?  

Billing is based on generated work orders with supporting back-up 
documentation. 

 
32. Regarding the Pre-Proposal Meeting Minutes: 
 

The Operator will be required to maintain the existing Technical Support Agreement with 
Jervis B. Webb.  

 
Jervis Webb offers several support options, could you please clarify what level of service 
is required?  See answer to No. 4 above. 
 

33. Regarding Attachment E Bid Form; 
  

 Please clarify that the total annual amount is “blue cell I71.”  Excel form includes 
formulas.  These can be disabled in manual entry is preferred. 

 
Please clarify that surety and fidelity bonds are not included in total annual amount.   Not 
included. 

 
34. In the Notice to Contactors and Vendors Bidding on Public Works Projects – items 7 and 

8 reference a “RIVIP cover letter” and a “VendorID”.   

Q – Could you please tell us where we will find the RIVIP cover letter and our 
VendorID”?  Refer to State of Rhode Island Purchasing website. 
 

35. Request for Proposal Requirements – Proposing firm shall submit one electronic and 

seven printed copies of the proposal. 

Q – Would you also like seven copies of the most recent audited financial statements in 
a separate sealed envelope, or will just one be acceptable?  One copy in a separate 
sealed envelope is required. 
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36. Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Participation requires firms to comply with all 

applicable Federal, State and Local regulations and laws, including Affirmative Action 

and the Disadvantaged Business Enterprise programs. 

Q – Does RIAC have a specific goal or requirement to utilize DBE companies on this 
project?  RIAC’s current DBE goal is 11.2% 
 
Q – if so, is there a list of Certified DBE companies that can be provided?  You can 
obtain a listing of Rhode Island Certified DBE firms on the following website:  
http://www.mbe.ri.gov/. 

 

37. Attachment E – Bid Form 

 

Q – Is the Bid Form available in Excel format?  This was on the CD previously provided. 

Q – On the Bid Form, what is the Management Fee highlighted in red at the top of the 

form?  Is this the total of the G&A and Profit from within the form?  Yes. 

Q – The Bid Form asks for start-up costs to be detailed under section “3. Startup 
costs (One-time)”, and then asks for total start-up costs again under section “5. 
Totals Start-up Costs”.  Is this just the total from section 3. listed again?    Excel 
form includes formulas.  These can be disabled in manual entry is preferred. 
Q – Under section “5. Totals” what is to be listed as Year 1, Year 2, Year 3, Year 4 and 

Year 5?  Is this the annual prices less start-up costs?  Yes. 

Q – Since bonds are asked for in section “6. Bonds”, are we to exclude the cost of bonds 

from our total costs?  Yes. 

Q – Are state/local sales/use taxes to be included in our proposal, or is the Rhode Island 
Airport Corporation exempt?  RIAC is exempt.  A copy of the certificate will be provided 
at the time of award. 
Q – The RFP states that Parking will be provided, but there is a place on the bid 
document for a cost.  Is there a cost associated with parking? No. 
Q – Is there a cost for company equipment/vehicles to drive on the ramp?  No.  
Q – Is the cost of badging a one-time fee, or is there also an annual renewal fee? 
Currently it is a one-time fee. 

 
38. “The Operator will be expected to assume the current, or be responsible for, all costs to 

migrate the current CMMS for all aspects of its operation including, but not limited to, 
tracking of work orders, spare parts, Operator’s labor, and the reoccurring maintenance”. 
 
Q – Is the airport keeping its current Maximo System, or requiring the Maintenance 
provider to setup their own CMMS system based on what you have in your current 
system?  Current system. 
Q – Is the Operator allowed to migrate the existing Maximo 6.1 to another CMMS?  Yes 
at their own cost. 
Q – How many Maximo 6.1 seats does RIAC currently have and will these be available 
to the Operator? One possibly two.  Yes available to Operator. 
Q – If so, are there any CMMS/Maximo costs that the operator will be required to include 
in their bid other than the cost of the manpower to operate the system? Annual fee is 
currently approximately $2,400. 
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Q – The specification indicates that the “CMMS will be the means by which payments to 
the Operator will be made.” Will payments be made based on work orders performed? 
Please clarify.  Yes. 

  
39. Campaign Finance Compliance 

 

Q – Is this document required to be submitted at time of bid, or only if awarded the 

contract?  Only required if awarded or Operator is currently providing service for State 

Agencies. 

 

40. Major State Decision-Maker 

 

Q – Is this representation required to be submitted at time of bid, or only if awarded the 

contract?  At time of bid. 

 

41. BHS Control Room Staffing 
 

Q – Can the BHS Control Room technician be assigned to other duties outside of the 
BHS Control Room during BHS operation or does a BHS Control Room Technician have 
to remain in the control room at all times during BHS operation?  Operator’s preference. 

 
42. Spare Parts Inventory 

 
Q – Will RIAC reimburse the Operator for spare parts usage a) as the inventory is used, 
or b) when the parts are purchased?  As used. 

 
43. Training for Airlines  

 
Q – How often does RIAC anticipate that the Operator will be required to provide 
baggage hygiene training for the airlines?  As needed for new hires at the request of the 
airline.  Will vary based on demand. 

 
44. Inbound BHS  

 
Q – Who maintains the inbound BHS and carousels? RIAC. 
Q – Does RIAC anticipate adding this scope to the Operator’s contract at some point? 
No. 

 
45. Attachment D – Performance Measures – RIAC outlines performance measures yet no 

penalties or incentives based on those levels of performance.  
 
Q – Does RIAC intend to deduct from the Operator’s payment based on not meeting 
certain performance KPI(s)?  Non-performance may be deemed breach of contract. 
Q – If so, how will it be determined, and what amount will be deducted? Refer to contract 
agreement.          

 
46. Operator will be required to maintain the existing Technical Support Agreement. 

Q – What are the terms of the existing agreement?  See No. 4 above. 
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Q – When will it expire?  See No. 4 above 
Q – Where is this cost reflected on the Bid form, or will all costs be paid by RIAC directly 
to Webb? See No. 4 above 

 
47. The Operator is required to ensure that enough tubs exist for all Airlines. 

 
Q – Who will purchase replacements for damaged/lost tubs?  Operator. 
Q – Who will purchase additional tubs should volume increase?  Operator. 
Q – Is the Operator required to “return tubs to the airlines” throughout each day, or is the 
Operator only required to “return tubs to the airlines” once each day?  Through-out the 
day. 
Q – As this RFP only covers the outbound BHS, are the tubs shared between the 
inbound and outbound systems? N/A. 

 
48. With regard to hours and wages in Rhode Island, it appears that under R.I.G.L. 25-3 

there may be certain exceptions for employers. 

 

Q – Since this is a 24/7 maintenance operation, would we be required to pay our 

employees time and a half to work Sundays, if Sunday is part of the employee’s normal 

40 hour weekly work schedule?  Bidders should consult their own legal counsel. 

Q – Would our contract with RIAC exempt us from paying overtime to the employee in 

this situation?  No. 

 

49. Are there any licenses required for this project?  Please refer to meeting notes. 

 

50. Please explain how unread bags are handled.  Operator is not responsible for unread 

bags. 

 

51. Who is responsible for the movement of oversized bags?  Typically the airlines at their 

counter. 

 

52. The inbound claim units are shown on the display screens in the control room.  Is there a 

requirement to monitor their status?  No. 

 

53. What exactly is the required ‘Electrical Maintenance License” and does the prime need 

to hold it or a subcontractor or an individual?  Refer to RI Department of Labor and 

Training. 

 

54. What is the cost of the Jervis Webb Tech Support agreement and what services are 

included?  See No. 4 above. 

 

55. Will RIAC have a firm audit of the parts on site prior to turnover?  Responsibility of the 

existing and new Operator. 

 

56. Which contract (PSA) terms and conditions are non-negotiable?  Not determined at this 

time.  Include at your own risk. 
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57. Please verify if there are any DBE percentage requirement goals are for this bid 

submission? 11.2%. 

 

58. Will the city (RIAC) be covering the costs of any utilities associated with the provided 

contractor space (electric, water, etc.) ?  Yes. 

 

59.  Will the city (RIAC) be providing the contractor with telephone and internet access?  No. 

 

60. What are the current read rates of the laser arrays (sort systems)?  Refer to RFP, 

Attachment D. 

 

61. Who will be responsible to relocate the baggage tubs back up to the ticketing areas?  

Operator. 

 

62. Are the ticket counter scales included in the contractors scope of work?  No. 

 

63. Please clarify if the following sections of the RFP do or do not factor into the 20 page 

limitation on the bid submission?   

    1- Item 6. Attachment “E” 

    2- Item 7. Safety Action Plan 

    3- Item 8. Attachment “F” Exceptions to PSA 

    4- Item 10. Letter certifying DBE participation 

    5- Proof of Insurance 

These items do not count towards the page limit. 

 

64. Please confirm that the filing of the affidavit regarding political campaign contributions 

should occur upon award and is not part of the bid submission?  See No. 30 above. 

 

65. Can RIAC please clarify what specifically needs to be included in the submitted Safety 

Action Plan? i.e. safety protocols, training, emergency response, etc.  OSHA log for 

current or previous account(s). 
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